DBOPC 07/25/2019

1	
2	
3	DETROIT BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS
4	REGULAR MEETING
5	
6	THURSDAY, JULY 25, 2019 AT 3:00 PM
7	
8	DETROIT PUBLIC SAFETY HEADQUARTERS
9	1301 THIRD AVENUE
10	DETROIT, MICHIGAN
11	
12	
13	
14	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	



Page 2 07/25/2019

Τ	COMMISSIONERS:
2	
3	
4	LISA CARTER, Chairperson (Dist. 6)
5	WILLIE BELL, Commissioner (Dist. 4)
6	DARRYL D. BROWN, Commissioner (Dist. 1)
7	WILLIAM M. DAVIS, Commissioner (Dist. 7)
8	JIM HOLLEY, Commissioner, At-Large
9	ANNIE HOLT, Commissioner, At-Large
10	ELIZABETH BROOKS, Commissioner, At-Large
11	
12	REPRESENTING THE CHIEF OF POLICE'S OFFICE:
13	CHIEF DAVID LEVALLEY
14	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	



07/25/2019 Page 3

- 1 Detroit, Michigan.
- July 25, 2019 2.
- 3 About 3:00 p.m.
- CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Good afternoon. 4 T am
- Police Commissioner, Lisa Carter. I represent District 5
- I serve as the Chair of the Board and will be 6
- 7 conducting our meeting this afternoon. On behalf of the
- board for those in attendance, thank you for joining us. 8
- 9 For those viewing this meeting on your government cable
- channel, thank you for viewing our meeting. 10
- Commissioners Eva Dewaelsche, Shirley Burch 11
- 12 and Willie Burton have been Excused from today's
- 13 meeting. Today we have invited Chaplain Tia Davis to
- 14 provide invocation. Is Chaplain Tia Davis here? No.
- 15 So I'm going to ask Reverend Holley if you'd please do
- 16 the invocation.
- (Invocation given) 17
- CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Thank you, Commissioner 18
- 19 Holley. At this time, we're going to start with
- introductions to my far right with Commissioner Holt. 20
- 21 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Thank you, Chairperson.
- 22 Annie Holt, member At-Large.
- 23 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: William Davis, District
- 7. 2.4
- 25 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Good afternoon.



- 1 Elizabeth Brooks At-Large.
- COMMISSIONER BELL: Willie Bell District 4.
- 3 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Jim Holley At-Large.
- 4 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Darryl Brown, District
- 5 1.
- 6 MR. HICKS: Madam Chair, you have a quorum.
- 7 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Thank you, Mr. Hicks.
- 8 We have a few business items for your consideration,
- 9 Commissioners. First is the approval of the agenda, and
- 10 the second is approval of the minutes for July 18, 2019.
- 11 At this time, I'll ask for a motion to approve the
- 12 agenda.
- 13 COMMISSIONER: So moved.
- 14 COMMISSIONER: Support.
- 15 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: It's been moved and
- 16 supported that we approve the agenda for today, July
- 17 25th, 2019. Is there any discussion? Those in favor?
- 18 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.
- 19 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Opposed? Motion
- 20 carries. At this time, Commissioners, you have before
- 21 you the minutes from July 18, 2019.
- 22 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: So moved.
- 23 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Support.
- 24 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: So moved and supported
- 25 that we adopt the minutes form July 18, 2019. Is there



07/25/2019 Page 5

- 1 any discussion? Those in favor?
- 2 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.
- 3 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Those opposed? Motion
- 4 carries. At this time, Mr. Hicks, would you please
- 5 introduce the BOPC staff.
- 6 MR. HICKS: Thank you, Madam Chair. Just
- 7 prior to making those introductions, I do want to
- 8 indicate that the meeting today is being taped by
- 9 Sergeant Quinn, Media Services is providing the
- 10 audiovisual work, and Mindy Womack is the court reporter
- 11 today. And immediately to my right, of course, is Board
- 12 attorney, Jermaine Wyrick. And then, of course, if I
- 13 can ask for in addition to Robert Brown ask for the
- 14 other staff that on the BOPC and the OCI to stand and
- 15 introduce yourselves.
- 16 MS. JOHNSON: Faye Johnson, Board
- 17 accountant.
- 18 MS. BLOSSOM: Theresa Blossom, Human
- 19 Relations.
- MR. HICKS: Then we go to, of course, Chief
- 21 Investigator, Polly McCalister. Polly McCalister will
- 22 introduce herself and the balance of the OCI present.
- DR. McCALISTER: Good afternoon, Board. I'm
- 24 Dr. McCalister, and attending today is meeting with me
- 25 today is Supervising Investigator Akbar, Senior



- 1 Investigator Moses, not here yet. Investigator Nichols,
- 2 investigator Coulter, Investigator Neely, and
- 3 Investigator Callaway. Thank you.
- 4 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Thank you, for that.
- 5 At this time, I'd like to introduce Assistant Chief
- 6 David LeValley. Good afternoon, sir.
- 7 A.C. LeVALLEY: Good afternoon. Good
- 8 afternoon to the Board. Assistant Chief David LeValley
- 9 Office of Neighborhood Policing. Sitting in for Chief
- 10 Craig currently. Additionally with me today are some
- 11 Detroit police staff.
- 12 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Thank you. If there
- 13 are any elected officials, VIPs, or civic leaders, or
- 14 representatives in the audience, please stand and give
- 15 your name for the record, please. Hearing none, I will
- 16 go on to my report. Before I start my Chairperson's
- 17 report, I want to call your attention to the change in
- 18 our -- to a change in our procedure. Typically, we
- 19 create an opportunity for the public to address the
- 20 Board under public comments at the end of the meeting.
- 21 The practice is consistent with the Open Meetings Act.
- 22 Today I am introducing two changes to our practice. One
- 23 is the board will be voting on an important policy
- 24 recommendation. I will allow a special public comment
- 25 period before the vote restricted to the policy under



- 1 consideration.
- 2 Two, the normal public comments at the end
- 3 of the meeting will remain as parts of our standard
- 4 agenda; however, if you would like to speak in public
- 5 comments at the end of the meeting, you will have to
- 6 provide your card to Mr. Brown no later than the end of
- 7 the Chief's report.
- I also want to make a clarification. The
- 9 Detroit Board of Police Commissioners do not require for
- 10 people attending our meetings to show identification or
- 11 identify themselves as a condition to participate in our
- 12 meetings; however, the Public Safety Headquarters
- 13 Building does require identification. The Board does
- 14 not operate the building. The enhanced security of the
- 15 public facilities go back to the provision under the
- 16 Patriot Act and are implemented in all federal, state,
- 17 and local government buildings.
- 18 At our community meetings, which are
- 19 normally held in nongovernmental settings like churches
- 20 and community centers, we do not have security checks
- 21 unless it's required by the host facility. With these
- 22 updates, I will continue with my normal Chairperson's
- 23 report.
- 24 On behalf of the Board, I want to express
- 25 our concerns and support for our fallen and injured



- 1 officers. Our concern for officer safety and citizen
- 2 protection is ranked as two of the most important
- 3 priorities of the Board. Our Board receives a weekly
- 4 report from the Department listing the injured officers.
- 5 I would ask that the Assistant Chief please during your
- 6 remarks provide us with any additional information
- 7 related to injured and fallen officers.
- 8 The Board of Police Commissioners meet every
- 9 week except for Thanksqiving and Christmas Holiday
- 10 period. We meet in the Public Safety Headquarters three
- 11 weeks in the month, three weeks in the month on Thursday
- 12 at 3 p.m. We also meet in the community every second
- 13 Thursday of the month at 6:30 p.m. Under the Detroit
- 14 City Charter, Article 7 Chapter 8, the Board of Police
- 15 Commissioners is empowered to provide civilian oversight
- 16 and supervisory control of the Police Department.
- 17 Our citizens are justified in asking how the
- 18 civilian oversight of law enforcement helps you as a
- 19 citizen within our community. Our answer is we protect
- 20 the civil rights of our citizens. Oversight
- 21 organizations like the BOPC are at the forefront of
- 22 investigating, reviewing and auditing individual cases
- 23 of citizen complaints and patterns of operation by
- 24 police agencies to eliminate misconduct, discriminatory
- 25 police practices and unnecessary use of force by the



- 1 police.
- 2 Our work is based on developing and
- 3 supporting effective policing. Mutual trust and respect
- 4 between the police and the community is critical toward
- 5 increasing the quality of our life of our residents and
- 6 for visitors to Detroit.
- 7 The Board of Police Commissioners exists to
- 8 provide civilian oversight for the work of the Detroit
- 9 Police Department. As a board, we receive and
- 10 investigate noncriminal citizens complaints, monitor the
- 11 operations of the Department and work with the mayor and
- 12 chief to make or modify police policy.
- I want to point out several items for your
- 14 consideration and information, the Board of Police
- 15 Commissioners has not received a modified version of the
- 16 Chief's proposed directive on facial recognition. When
- 17 this matter arrives, we will post it on our website and
- 18 review the proposed directive. We will also notify the
- 19 public of our intent to vote on it as it will be added
- 20 to the action items on our agenda. The proposed agenda
- 21 is released on Tuesday of each week allowing for 48
- 22 hours notice of our intent to take up this important
- 23 directive.
- 24 Again, I want to remind the Board we are
- 25 continuing our work with NACO, National Association for



- 1 Civilian Oversight of Law Enforcement, to host the
- 2 National Conference on September 22nd through 26th, 2019
- 3 in Detroit. During this time, Detroit will be
- 4 celebrating our 45th year as Civilian Oversight
- 5 organization. We are inviting law enforcement and other
- 6 civic-minded individuals and organizations to join us at
- 7 the conference. The planning process is well underway,
- 8 and again, we invite your participation.
- 9 The Board received a request from the Chief
- 10 of Police to suspend without pay Police Officer Naine
- 11 Brown. Information on this suspension has been shared
- 12 with the full Board. Mr. Wyrick is reviewing the
- 13 request. The BOPC has notified the Detroit Police
- 14 Officers Association and we are suggesting a hearing on
- 15 this matter next week, August 1st, 2019.
- The next graduation from the Police Academy
- 17 for class of 2019-D will be Friday August 2nd, 2019 at
- 18 10:30 p.m. -- a.m. at the Second Ebenezer Church. I
- 19 encourage the Board to attend and show your support to
- 20 new officers and their families who will soon be joining
- 21 the police force.
- 22 Additionally, I want to remind the Board of
- 23 the retirement celebration for Deputy Chief of Police
- 24 Elvin Barren. The celebration is today beginning at 5
- 25 p.m. Each Board member has a reminder in their Board



- 1 package of the event, its location, and time. Please
- 2 refer to the sheet for more information.
- 3 Today we have one presentation scheduled.
- 4 The presentation is the monthly report from the office
- 5 the Chief Investigator, Dr. Polly McCalister. She will
- 6 be making the presentation.
- 7 Under the chief's report, I am requesting an
- 8 update on a crime statistics and any critical issues
- 9 facing the police department. Again, at the end of the
- 10 meeting, we will have public comments from the audience.
- 11 Please make sure you print your name on the speaker's
- 12 cards. Cards are located on the back -- in the back on
- 13 the table, or can be obtained by seeing Mr. Brown, who's
- 14 seated up here in the front. He will need your card
- 15 before the end of the Chief of Police report. Again, he
- 16 will need your card before the end of the chief's
- 17 report. We will hold each speaker to the allotted two
- 18 minutes.
- 19 I ask that everyone turn off your cell
- 20 phones and other electronic devices. This request does
- 21 not include the devices held by DPD personnel, as many
- of you are on emergency standby. I ask DPD personnel to
- 23 keep their phones on vibrate so that ringing phones will
- 24 not interrupt our meeting.
- 25 At this time, we'll have the report from



- 1 Assistant Chief LeValley. Thank you.
- A.C. LeVALLEY: Thank you, Madam Chair.
- 3 I'll start with the crime stats for today. This is as
- 4 of 11:59 last night. Homicides for this year were at
- 5 134. Last year we were at 132 on this date. So we're
- 6 two higher. Sexual assaults were at 532. Last year we
- 7 were at 499, an increase of 33. Aggravated assaults
- 8 5,366. Last year we were at 5,362, and increase of
- 9 four. Nonfatal shootings we were at 403, last year we
- 10 were at 377, increase of 26. Robberies we were at
- 11 1,214. Last year we were at 1284. That's 70 fewer.
- 12 And carjackings we're at 109. Last year 180. That's 71
- 13 fewer. Property crime, burglaries are down 8% compared
- 14 to last year. Larceny is down 4%, and motor vehicle
- 15 thefts are down 2%.
- Moving on to injured officers. Currently
- 17 Officer Wallace Johnson is still recovering from a
- 18 gunshot wound to the head. He's in a long-term care
- 19 facility. Officer Christopher Thursen is recovering at
- 20 home from a motorcycle accident. Officer Marvin
- 21 Rodriguez recovering at home from a gunshot wound.
- 22 Officer Christopher Bush, and Officer Michael Reyes
- 23 Morales both recovering at home after being struck by
- 24 vehicles. Officer Darius Tolbert was involved in an
- on-duty motor vehicle accident. He's recovering at home



- 1 after surgery. And also police Officer Michael Borden
- 2 with your Neighborhood Police Officer is recovering at
- 3 home after being bit by a spider. He was hospitalized
- 4 and since been released.
- 5 Announcements. You already made the
- 6 announcement about Deputy Chief Barren's retirement
- 7 celebration this evening and graduation of 2019-D, which
- 8 is next Friday, August 2nd. Also an announcement that
- 9 on August 10, 2019, we will we celebrating field day at
- 10 the Wayne State University, that's from the 8 a.m. to
- 11 6:00 p.m. on that date. And that will conclude my
- 12 report.
- 13 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Thank you, Assistant
- 14 Chief. Any questions for Assistant Chief LeValley?
- 15 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Yes. Ouestion. I
- 16 don't know if you noticed, but I see the personnel
- 17 director is not here, but if an officer separates and
- 18 wants to come back in less than a year, what is their
- 19 procedure, because I know a lot of officers and
- 20 ex-officers approach me constantly. So do you know the
- 21 procedure?
- 22 A.C. LeVALLEY: So officers who have
- 23 separated, they write a letter to the Chief of Police
- 24 requesting to be reappointed to the Department. Then
- 25 that letter is then sent to the recruiting unit who



- 1 conducts a background investigation just to make sure
- 2 that nothing has happened from the time that they
- 3 separated the Department to the time that they want to
- 4 come back. Assuming they pass the background
- 5 investigation, then they receive a hire date and report
- 6 back to the Police Academy just for like a two-week
- 7 refresher course and the Chief swears them back into the
- 8 Department.
- 9 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: I know that this
- 10 particular officer left, you know. He had to leave
- 11 about eight months ago and he's ready to come back.
- 12 A.C. LeVALLEY: If he just writes a letter,
- 13 addresses it to the Chief of Police, as soon as they
- 14 receive the letter, then that initiates the process of
- 15 being rehired.
- 16 COMMISSIONER BELL: Okay. I might add if
- 17 the Chief denies him an opportunity, he can appeal,
- 18 write a letter to the Board of Police Commissioners.
- 19 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: I gave him my card.
- 20 COMMISSIONER BELL: That will be the final
- 21 appeal by the Chief for the first step. By all means,
- 22 he needs to exercise with his union leadership in
- 23 reference to support for that particular matter.
- 24 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Madam Chairperson.
- 25 Assistant Chief, just a couple of things. One, the



- 1 status of Officer Jones, you had a -- the last time he
- 2 had like three weeks since we had an update on what the
- 3 status is, and I thought that some, some -- something
- 4 would be done in terms of finalization of that. Do you
- 5 know that? Do you want to come back with that?
- 6 A.C. LeVALLEY: I know that there was a
- 7 disciplinary hearing that was held. I don't believe a
- 8 decision has been released yet from the Chief, so I'll
- 9 have to come back with that.
- 10 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Secondly, in light of
- 11 all the things that's going on like in New York where
- 12 water is thrown on officers, so what do we say to our
- officers to make sure that just in case something like
- 14 that do. Is there something that you guys are doing
- 15 just to be prepared for copycats or something like that?
- 16 Is there something that goes on in terms of if there's
- 17 roll call?
- 18 A.C. LeVALLEY: We always remind our
- 19 officers to be vigilant of their entire surroundings,
- 20 constantly watching their partners, watching who's
- 21 approaching them. If our officers are assaulted,
- 22 certainly they would be in the right to make an arrest
- 23 in that type of situation. In terms of the water, it's
- 24 not legal to throw any type of object on anybody.
- 25 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Thank you, Madam



07/25/2019 Page 16

- 1 Chairperson.
- 2. CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Any other questions,
- Commissioners? 3
- COMMISSIONER BROWN: Yeah, Madam Chair. 4
- CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Commissioner Brown. 5
- COMMISSIONER BROWN: A.C., I was concerned 6
- 7 about looking at the situation concerning the shooting
- of the dog over in the 6th precinct area. Wasn't one 8
- 9 that, per se, but I was just concerned about they
- deployed tasers and they failed to operate or something. 10
- Can you elaborate on the situation like that, and is 11
- 12 that going to be a situation where we're probably going
- 13 to have with these tasers going forward, or is this just
- 14 an isolated incident.
- 15 A.C. LeVALLEY: I don't have specifics. I
- 16 think Deputy Chief Fitzgerald a command does report to
- 17 him and he may have specifics.
- D.C. FITZGERALD: Yeah. Deputy Chief 18
- 19 Charles Fitzgerald. We've had a lot of success with the
- This one had distance and it didn't guite set 20 tasers.
- 21 with the clothing the person was wearing. There was no
- attempt to tase the animal. They were attempting to 2.2
- 23 tase the dog owner.
- 2.4 COMMISSIONER BROWN: One more question.
- notice I've seen the cars with blue overhead. Have we 25



- 1 gotten any data back on how successful that is in
- 2 helping reducing officer fatalities in traffic stops and
- 3 things like that?
- 4 A.C. LeVALLEY: In the two precincts, I
- 5 don't have specific numbers available with me. In the
- 6 two precincts that we did deploy the lights in we've
- 7 seen fewer crashes, but I don't have any studied data to
- 8 provide at this point. That will come in the future.
- 9 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Well, that's a start.
- 10 All right. Thank you, Madam Chair.
- 11 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Thank you,
- 12 Commissioners. Any other questions? I just want to add
- that today, several commissioners had an opportunity to
- 14 visit the Realtime Crime Stoppers and had a presentation
- 15 from the executive manager of Realtime Crime Center,
- 16 which was very, it was very enlightening. So I think,
- 17 is there something scheduled next week, Mr. Hicks?
- 18 MR. HICKS: Thank you, Madam Chair. First,
- 19 of all, we indicated to the Chiefs office there were two
- 20 days that we would poll, and the individuals that
- 21 responded today had there's, and in the intervening
- 22 period of time as other Commissioners responded, we'll
- 23 make arrangements for something next week as well.
- 24 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Okay. Thank you. And
- 25 I want to thank those Commissioners who were in



- 1 attendance today. Thank you, Assistant Chief LeValley.
- 2 At this time, we will have our presentations from Dr.
- 3 Holley McCalister the monthly OCI report.
- 4 DR. McCALISTER: Good afternoon again.
- 5 Today you will be hearing and viewing our June report.
- 6 So we added in for June our year-to-date -- excuse me.
- 7 I'm losing my voice today. We added in our year-to-date
- 8 for our CCRs. We broke them down by filed, closed, and
- 9 pending, which are still open. And for June, we
- 10 actually had a 20% increase, which was we processed 98
- 11 additional complaints over last year. So we took in an
- 12 extra 98 from last year. For closed, we actually did a
- 13 16% increase, which are, we processed 80. And for our
- open, which are our cases that we're still working on,
- 15 we processed 38. So we had a 17% increase there.
- So from year-to-date we had an extremely
- 17 high increase. The only thing I can credit it to is
- 18 people are feeling more comfortable with calling our
- 19 office and filing complaints at the different precincts.
- 20 Within the precinct, they are taking those complaints.
- 21 I think when I first started, there was a few issues,
- 22 but thus far, I think it's all been worked out. And
- 23 normally when a person walks into a precinct, the
- 24 complaints are taken and they're sent directly to us.
- This is our typical command list of how many



- 1 citizens complaint each command has had. The 8th
- 2 precinct, again, kind of like holding onto the 10 and 11
- 3 spot. We're hoping to work with them to get those down,
- 4 and, as always, our unknowns are always the highest.
- 5 For our citizen's complaints alleging use of
- 6 profanity, this is something that Commissioner Bell
- 7 started and has been tracking over the last year. For
- 8 May we had six, for June we had six, but we also had a
- 9 decrease in the F word. We had four in May, and only
- 10 one in June. And I know Commissioner Holley, you were
- 11 always interested in the offensive slurs, and the only
- 12 thing that came up for these were we had somebody say
- 13 hey Gucci man, come here, and somebody used God's name
- 14 in vain so. . .
- 15 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Who was that?
- DR. McCALISTER: I'll find out. I'll find
- 17 out. And these are our CCRs that are actually closed.
- 18 As always, we have procedure and demeanor and normally
- 19 searched are always our highest. This month, procedure
- 20 has taken over from demeanor, so our officers are really
- 21 being polite. They're learning what to say and what not
- 22 to say. However, our procedures have excelled for 74
- and we were able to close 74 of those.
- 24 For our electronic evidence, we were able to
- 25 capture 41 out of 48. We did have several complaints



- 1 that were actually filed after the 90 day, so we were
- 2 not able to go back and pull that data, so we lost that
- 3 as far as those but seven, but it's still not bad.
- 4 We're able to capture the majority of them.
- 5 And for DPD members by seniority and rank,
- 6 for lieutenants, we had three complaints for June. We
- 7 had an increase by three. For police officers had 101.
- 8 We actually had a decrease by 25, which is exceptional,
- 9 because that's been the highest we've always had.
- 10 Officers have always had 135, 140, but for this month,
- 11 we only had 101. 34 members with ten to 19 years we are
- 12 up nine, and 24 sworn members with 20 to 29 years we are
- 13 up one. For detectives, we are down three, and for nine
- 14 sworn members with 30 years, we are down one.
- 15 And a reminder that the Board is speaking to
- 16 the class 2019-D on June 26. Mr. Hicks sent that email
- out a couple of weeks ago, so those that are able to
- 18 attend. I think they're going to try to coordinate --
- 19 July 26, I'm sorry, for tomorrow. But it's actually
- 20 tomorrow at 10. But he sent that email out to you guys
- 21 to coordinate your schedules. So hopefully you got them
- 22 and you opened them, maybe. That's the class that's
- 23 graduating on August 2nd.
- 24 And as always, how to file a citizen
- 25 complaint. You can either come to our office directly,



- 1 which is at 900 Merrill Plaisance, and our telephone
- 2 number, which is 596-2499, or you can file online and
- 3 we'll get it and process. Any questions?
- 4 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Thank you, Dr.
- 5 McCalister. Any questions, Commissioner? Commissioner
- 6 Davis.
- 7 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Two questions.
- DR. McCALISTER: Yes.
- 9 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Well, one comment.
- 10 I've been talking to people all over the city and I
- 11 encourage them to call you.
- DR. McCALISTER: Yes, I know. They tell me.
- 13 Commissioner Davis said to call you.
- 14 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Also, secondly, are you
- 15 short of staff? And if you are short of staff, is that
- 16 a problem? Is that slowing up the process? Is that
- 17 making you not closing as many as you'd like to as
- 18 quickly as you'd like to?
- 19 DR. McCALISTER: I mean we are short, but I
- 20 think every department in the city is short. So we just
- 21 kind of like dig in and get it done.
- 22 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: How short are you? I
- 23 mean staff, not your personal height.
- 24 DR. McCALISTER: Well I have on heels, so
- 25 I'm not short today. Actually, we're only down one



- 1 supervisor because he retired, and I think we're down
- 2 two investigators.
- 3 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Okay. That's three.
- 4 Thank you.
- 5 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Any other questions,
- 6 Commissioners?
- 7 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: I don't have a
- 8 question, I'd just like to comment. This is very nicely
- 9 done. Very nicely done. I just want you to know that.
- DR. McCALISTER: Thank you.
- 11 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Just let you know, I
- 12 very seldom -- I like you. Just know you've done it.
- 13 This is a beautiful report.
- DR. McCALISTER: Thank you.
- 15 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Any other comments or
- 16 questions?
- 17 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Madam Chair?
- 18 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Commissioner Brown.
- 19 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Dr. McCalister, always
- 20 just thank you for your report and time you put into it.
- 21 It's always an excellent presentation. I just still had
- 22 that one concern about the footage for the camera issue.
- 23 What can we do? I know it takes up a lot of memory, or
- 24 whatever. Is there anything we can do after that to
- 25 maybe that OCI can develop their own storage or data



- 1 bank base to store these videos for up to a year and
- 2 then we get rid of them, or is this a policy issue that
- 3 may have to come before the Board, again, in alignment
- 4 with DPD's policies? Is there something we can create
- 5 outside of that so that once they discard the videos
- 6 that they come to OCI for an additional source to be
- 7 held on for at least a year?
- 8 DR. McCALISTER: Actually, that's not our
- 9 issue. Our issue is like so a citizen has an encounter
- 10 with a police officer three months ago, and then they
- 11 decide in August to make the complaint. The video is
- 12 actually gone from the server for us to go in and pull.
- 13 That's what I mean when I say it's past the 90 days and
- 14 we don't have the capabilities to pull it. Once we do
- 15 pull it, we can download it and we do save it. It's
- 16 just that 90 day, and I think that would have to come
- 17 through the Department. As far as extending that, I
- 18 don't know if it's possible. I think that's a
- 19 conversation that we could probably have with the Chief
- 20 or one of the Assistant Chiefs.
- 21 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Okay. Thank you.
- 22 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Any other questions,
- 23 Commissioner? Thank, you Madam. Commissioners, any
- 24 standing or ad hoc committee reports at this time? Mr.
- 25 Hicks will have the board secretary report.



07/25/2019 Page 24

- 1 MR. HICKS: Thank you, Madam Chair. I did
- 2 want to call to your attention three items that were
- 3 listed as incoming items into the board, and they're
- 4 listed specifically on the agenda. One was a Freedom of
- 5 Information request around the July -- Freedom of
- 6 Information request around the events of July 11 Board
- 7 meeting. Secondly, we had a request from Team Wellness
- 8 Center. This was a Team Wellness Center was one of the
- 9 groups that participated in the mental health panel
- 10 discussion, and they wanted to come back and update us
- 11 relative to some of the work that they have done since
- 12 that period of time, including the addition of
- 13 psychiatric unit, and a number of the things that we're
- 14 doing with the Department, and they made the appeal
- 15 because they had made a presentation to the Full Board
- 16 and wanted to keep the Full Board apprised as to the
- 17 work in which they're doing. And then the third one was
- 18 email communications and it was, I think, also included
- 19 in your, in your packet. And this was a individual,
- 20 Terry Robinson, who made some comments relative to the
- 21 July 11th Board meeting. And with that, that's all the
- 22 items that we've had incoming for this week. Unless you
- 23 have any particular questions, that would be my report.
- 24 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: May I ask a question,
- 25 Madam Chair, please?



DBOPC 07/25/2019

- 1 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Yes.
- 2 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Mr. Secretary, for
- 3 example, one of the reasons why I was concerned about
- 4 Team Wellness coming and psychiatric ward piece, I want
- 5 to make sure that it's just not for us, for the Board,
- 6 that somehow I want to make sure that some of these
- 7 things that come before us are basically be connected to
- 8 the Police Department. In other words, I want to make
- 9 sure there's some follow-up so that if this is something
- 10 like what happened a few months ago, it can go to them.
- 11 They have a bed, they have a psychiatric ward. So I
- 12 just want to make sure that it's not always just for us;
- 13 that somehow it's your office, making sure that your
- office connect with the people in the Police Department
- that will somehow get it to the point where it's
- 16 implemented if necessary.
- 17 MR. HICKS: Madam Chair, if I can just
- 18 expand on that. The reason why they wanted to come back
- 19 was to update us specifically on their expanding
- 20 relationship and their capacity with the Department. So
- 21 they wanted to say, in effect, we engage the Department,
- 22 we have these types of things in which we're doing with
- 23 the Department, and they want to report it out to us.
- 24 The Department is already conversant and working with
- 25 them, as far as I understand it.



- 1 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: I am fine. I just
- 2 know you used the word, presentation was they're coming
- 3 back to us, the Board, not to the Police Department, and
- 4 I want to make sure that the work that we do is not just
- for us, but it's for the work of the Police Department.
- 6 And I want to make sure that at some point or another,
- 7 there is some way of allowing us to know that this is
- 8 working, that it's been implemented because, again,
- 9 anyway, I'll just leave it at that. You understand what
- 10 I'm trying --
- 11 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Yes, I do.
- 12 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: I'm not trying to be
- 13 difficult or adversarial, I just want you to know, I
- 14 want to make my point on record that it's not just for,
- 15 just for grandstanding. I want to make sure that it
- 16 works for us.
- 17 MR. HICKS: Commissioner, what they're
- 18 coming in to do is a report to you they have been in
- 19 front of you before on the work that they are doing with
- 20 the Department. That's what they are coming in to do.
- 21 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Thank you so much.
- 22 Thank you, Madam chair.
- 23 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Mr. Hicks, I do not
- 24 have a copy of the email communication, so can you make
- 25 sure we get it. Thank you. Any old business,



- 1 Commissioners? New business. Announcements. Our next
- 2 meeting will be Thursday August 1st, 2019 at 3 p.m. here
- 3 at the Detroit Public Safety Headquarters located at
- 4 1301 Third Street. Our next community meeting will be
- 5 Thursday, August 8, 2019 at 6:30 p.m. in the 5th
- 6 Precinct at the Carolyn Cheeks Kilpatrick room at the
- 7 Samaritan Center located at 5555 Connor Street. At this
- 8 time, we'll have oral communication for the audience.
- 9 Please give your name for the record and limit your
- 10 comments to two minutes, please.
- 11 MR. BROWN: Madam Chair, I currently have
- 12 five cards, I just count five of them. Ms. Fredia
- 13 Butler, Ms. Karen Gordon, Ms. Tawana Petty, Ms. Brenda
- 14 Hill, and Ms. Madge Morgan.
- 15 MS. BUTLER: Good afternoon. Commissioners,
- 16 thank you for recognizing and honoring Sergeant Vanessa
- 17 Wyatt for her 42 years of service in the Detroit Police
- 18 Department. When Chief Craig attended the community
- 19 celebration May 23rd at Butzel Recreation Center, he
- 20 says that when officers retired in California they made
- 21 plans for four months in advance to celebrate such an
- 22 achievement.
- Even though your recognition here did not go
- 24 as I had hoped, pictures with the Chief, Commissioners
- 25 and the Commander at the 2nd precinct and his



- 1 neighborhood police officers in a formal setting for
- 2 Sergeant Wyatt to have a recorded memory, I'm sorry that
- 3 pictures with the Board and Chief Craig could not have
- 4 been taken in a timely manner, so Commander and his NPOs
- 5 could return to their positions. However, the City had
- 6 an opportunity to witness that Detroit's finest have
- 7 officers who are dedicated to serve and are worthy to be
- 8 honored.
- 9 When I interviewed Sergeant Wyatt, I learned
- 10 that during her 42 years of service, she never fired her
- 11 weapon in the line of duty. That speaks volumes to her
- 12 character as an officer. Commissioners are passionately
- 13 support our officers, especially our neighborhood police
- officers in the 2nd precinct for the work they're doing
- 15 in our communities.
- 16 As a citizen, I hope to always speak up for
- 17 what is just and speak out for any unjust act committed
- 18 by any officers or officials who took an oath to serve
- 19 our City. Commissioners, please do not allow unpleasant
- 20 discourse among you to take your focus off the
- 21 responsibility that has been given to you as oversight
- 22 for the good and safety of our communities. Meet and
- 23 work out your differences before coming before the
- 24 public to learn of our concerns. Thanks for listening.
- 25 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Thank you.



07/25/2019

MR. BROWN:

1

MS. GORDON: Hi. My name is Karen Gordon,

Ms. Gordon.

- 3 and I'm here again today. I'm wondering why still not
- 4 yet have I found the 7th precinct. No one in it know
- 5 how to write up a false police crime report. When a
- 6 report was filed on me, it was a false police report.
- 7 And it says in the Penal Code Act 328 since 1931 750.
- 8 41. If a person made a false police report on you, you
- 9 can file charges against them, and I want to know why
- 10 can't I file charges against the three people that I can
- 11 prove made false police reports?
- 12 And then I also want to know that they, the
- 13 police officer also made a false police report and also
- 14 lied to his fellow police officer. So is he held to the
- 15 same as this penalty code, or is he exempt from this
- 16 law? And when I can't find an answer, who do I go to?
- 17 I done went to the police. The police don't know the
- 18 law. So who know the law? Who do I go to to find out
- 19 who know the law?
- 20 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Madam Chair?
- 21 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Go ahead, Commissioner.
- 22 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Let me ask Dr.
- 23 McCalister, is this something that your office can
- 24 handle for her?
- DR. McCALISTER: We can speak to her about



07/25/2019 Page 30

- 1 one complaint. Yes.
- 2. COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Just one of the
- 3 complaints?
- 4 MS. McCALISTER: Yes.
- COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Can you advise her 5
- 6 about the second one? Even though you can't do nothing
- 7 about it, you can advise her the legal?
- 8 We can talk. DR. McCALISTER:
- 9 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: So we're going to help
- through the Chair, we're going to help you today. 10
- 11 MS. GORDON: Thank you.
- 12 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Can we do that, Chief?
- DR. McCALISTER: We'll have somebody talk to 13
- 14 her. Yes.
- 15 MR. BROWN: Ms. Petty?
- 16 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Thank you so much.
- 17 Thank you, Madam Chair.
- MS. PETTY: Hello again. Tawana Petty 18
- 19 representing Detroit Community Technology Project. Of
- course I'm here to talk about facial recognition 20
- technology and also my disappointment at the fact that 21
- city council voted to expand a Realtime Crime Center 2.2
- 23 while we're in a heated debate, and a lot of folks are
- 2.4 confused, and there's a lack of transparency coming from
- the mayor's office and the Detroit Police Department. 25



1 I'm feeling very anxious about your upcoming vote, considering that everyone's going on catered field 2. trips to the Realtime Crime Center where you won't even 3 be able to determine whether or not you're getting a 4 5 real experience on a day-to-day practice of law 6 enforcement because you're not technologists so you can be shown pretty much anything at this point. So I just 7 want to voice my concern about that. 8 9 And finally, I think that there has been a 10 lack of transparency about mobile use in conjunction with Project Green Light and the potential for facial 11 12 recognition technology. The contract identifies that 13 there's unlimited mobile use. I still yet to hear how 14 law enforcement is using mobile cell phones in 15 conjunction with this technology. I don't think that's 16 been interrogated. I haven't heard anybody ask about 17 that, and I haven't heard it answered. And so I want to put back on the record that I think there needs to be 18 19 some transparency regarding the stats that are being given about accuracy regarding the use of mobile cell 20 phones regarding what happened to drones within the 21 proposed directive that was put forward in April, and 2.2 23 I'd like to get some, a few technologists to scrutinize 24 the Realtime Crime Center. And so that's my comment. 25 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Thank you.



1 MR. BROWN: Ms. Hill?

- MS. HILL: Yes. I don't feel very well.
- 3 Can Valerie Glenn take my two minutes?
- 4 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Yes.
- 5 MS. GLENN: Good afternoon, citizens and
- 6 Police Commissioners. My name is Valerie Glenn,
- 7 lifelong resident of the City of Detroit. I am here,
- 8 first of all, I'd like to ditto what Ms. Petty said.
- 9 I'm very concerned about the transparency regarding the
- 10 technology or the facial recognition technology. It has
- 11 now been written down and presented to the citizens by
- 12 some of the members of the city council, Ms. Sheffield
- in particular, or Councilwoman Sheffield. She actually
- 14 has said that you could have been using this technology
- 15 for two years. That's real disappointing to me along
- 16 with the community.
- 17 Right now I'm very, also very concerned
- 18 about the amount of arrests that have taken place
- 19 amongst the community activists attending meetings in
- 20 the City Council Building along with the other
- 21 buildings. When I attended the last City Council
- 22 evening meeting, I counted with the police officers that
- 23 were hiding in the back to the left of the center about
- 24 a one police officer to three citizens ratio. That's
- 25 entirely overkill. I wouldn't even have that many



- 1 people with children, or I wouldn't even have that in a
- 2 teaching situation.
- 3 Right now we have another person who has
- 4 been arrested and injured, and that is Ms. Warfield,
- 5 Joanna Warfield, or Joanne Warfield. Warwick. I'm
- 6 sorry. Warwick. And her situation is confusing, but
- 7 she was in the Coleman Alexander Young Building, and
- 8 there was an altercation with one of the police
- 9 officers. This is way overkill. My husband in his 35
- 10 years as being on the force never used his gun as well,
- 11 our he never got into and altercation. This is bad.
- 12 I'm sorry. You guys are not doing your job.
- 13 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Ms. Glenn, and to the
- 14 rest of you. This is an example. When citizens come to
- 15 us and make complaints, we try to make sure that police
- 16 officers are available. We don't know what the
- 17 complaint is going to be, so we have homicide, we have
- 18 all kind of police officers here for the citizens. It's
- 19 not for us, it's for the citizens. So that the
- 20 Assistant Chief, or the Chief will say to one of the
- 21 police officers how you can help, or the other side.
- 22 This is why we have them here.
- MS. GLENN: Not here.
- 24 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: I'm just responding.
- 25 I know you very well. I respect you very well.



07/25/2019 Page 34

- 1 MS. GLENN: I know you very well too.
- 2 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: I'm just saying to you
- 3 is that again, that's why we have the police officers
- 4 here, okay? That's the main thing.
- 5 The other thing I just wanted to say is that
- 6 I've been in this business for a long time, as you know,
- 7 and all I ask, all we ask here, and ask the president to
- 8 allow me just the same two minutes, less than a minute,
- 9 and that is we give you an opportunity to speak at the
- 10 end of the end. Anybody can speak for two minutes. We
- 11 just don't want you to speak during the meeting. It's
- 12 not you. I'm just talking now. I'm not talking about
- 13 nobody, I'm just talking about what I'm talking about.
- 14 That's all we want is to just have a respectful meeting.
- 15 But the police officers here, the OIC is here, and this
- 16 is simply for the citizens, that's why we have them
- 17 here. Not for overkill. We do mistakes sometimes.
- 18 We're not perfect, but I want you to know we respect you
- 19 and all the citizens because we're basically here
- 20 because you got us here.
- 21 So I just wanted to thank you for that. As
- 22 always, I know what you're saying. I know the work that
- 23 you do, and I just want to let you know this is why we
- 24 do what we do, and that's all. And thank you for
- 25 allowing me to come behind you and just say this without



- 1 you, because I know normally you would be very -- I'm
- 2 just letting you know. I thank you for that. Thank
- 3 you, Madam Chair.
- 4 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Ms. Morgan. Madam
- 5 Chair, that will be your last speaker.
- 6 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Mr. Burns, you're not
- 7 speaking tonight?
- 8 MR. BURNS: You want me to say something?
- 9 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: No.
- 10 MR. BURNS: I do have a lot on my mind.
- 11 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: I know you do. You
- 12 always do.
- MS. MORGAN: Hi. My name is Madge Penelope
- 14 Morgan. And this is my first time attending, or the
- 15 first time in a long time attending one of these
- 16 meetings. And the evil that was visited upon
- 17 Commissioner Burton brought me down here today. So my
- 18 question and my comment -- can I ask a question? Can my
- 19 comment be a question and get an answer? So I've been
- 20 reading on the news reports, and my question is, is it
- 21 true that you guys have a Wednesday meeting behind
- 22 closed doors? Secret meetings? Is that true? Yes or
- 23 no?
- 24 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Wednesday meetings?
- MS. MORGAN: Wednesday meetings where the



- 1 public is now allowed where Commission Burton was barred
- 2 from. Are there Wednesday meetings held in secret
- 3 behind closed doors is my question.
- 4 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Ma'am, we have a
- 5 Wednesday meeting that is myself and the staff members,
- 6 and sometimes the immediate past chair, the vice chair
- 7 where we discuss administrative issues. We discuss the
- 8 agenda, what's coming up on the agenda. So it's not a
- 9 secret meeting, it's just a meeting with myself and
- 10 staff, or whoever the chair is.
- MS. MORGAN: So those --
- 12 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: It's not going to be a
- 13 back and forth, so you have to ask all your questions
- 14 and then get an answers.
- MS. MORGAN: I've got another question.
- 16 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Okay. Go ahead.
- MS. MORGAN: What's you mean it's not going
- 18 to be a back -- I see you've got a transcriptionist over
- 19 there. Does the transcriptionist take notes at the
- 20 Wednesday meetings also?
- 21 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: No. We record the
- 22 meetings.
- MS. MORGAN: Oh, there's recordings of the
- 24 meetings? That's what I wanted to know.
- MR. BROWN: Madam Chair, that was your last



1	speaker.			
2	CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Thank you. If there's			
3	no other business, I'll entertain a motion to adjourn.			
4	COMMISSIONER BELL: So moved.			
5	COMMISSIONER: Support.			
6	CHAIRPERSON CARTER: So moved and supported			
7	that we adjourn. Those in favor?			
8	COMMISSIONERS: Aye.			
9	CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Motions carries. The			
10	meeting is adjourned. Thank you all for coming out this			
11	afternoon.			
12	(The proceeding was concluded at 3:50 p.m.)			
13				
14				
15				
16				
17				
18				
19				
20				
21				
22				
23				
24				
25				



Page 38 07/25/2019

1	CERTIFICATE OF NOTARY		
2			
3	STATE OF MICHIGAN)		
4) SS		
5	COUNTY OF OAKLAND)		
6			
7	I, Melinda R. Womack, Certified Shorthand		
8	Reporter, a Notary Public in and for the above county		
9	and state, do hereby certify that the above deposition		
10	was taken before me at the time and place hereinbefore		
11	set forth; that the witness was by me first duly sworn		
12	to testify to the truth, and nothing but the truth, that		
13	the foregoing questions asked and answers made by the		
14	witness were duly recorded by me stenographically and		
15	reduced to computer transcription; that this is a true,		
16	full and correct transcript of my stenographic notes so		
17	taken; and that I am not related to, nor of counsel to		
18	either party nor interested in the event of this cause.		
19	Melencle R. Domock		
20	Melacia R. Domock		
21	Melinda R. Womack, CSR-3611		
22	Notary Public,		
23	Oakland County, Michigan		
24	My Commission expires: 06-22-2025		



25

	24 20:12	5,366 12:8
1	25 3:2 20:8	532 12:6
1 4:5	25th 4:17	5555 27:7
1,214 12:11	26 12:10 20:16,19	596-2499 21:2
10 13:9 19:2 20:20	26th 10:2	5th 27:5
101 20:7,11	29 20:12	
109 12:12	2nd 10:17 13:8 20:23 27:25 28:14	6
10:30 10:18		6 3:6
11 19:2 24:6	3	6:00 13:11
11:59 12:4		6:30 8:13 27:5
11th 24:21	3 8:12 27:2	6th 16:8
1284 12:11	30 20:14	
1301 27:4	328 29:7	7
132 12:5	33 12:7	7 3:24 8:14
134 12:5	34 20:11	70 12:11
135 20:10	35 33:9	71 12:12
140 20:10	377 12:10	74 19:22,23
16% 18:13	38 18:15	750 29:7
17% 18:15	3:00 3:3	7th 29:4
18 4:10,21,25	3:50 37:12	
180 12:12	4	- 8
19 20:11	·	8 8:14 13:10 27:5
1931 29:7	4 4:2	8% 12:13
1st 10:15 27:2	4% 12:14	80 18:13
	403 12:9	8th 19:1
2	41 19:25 29:8	
2% 12:15	42 27:17 28:10	9
20 20:12	45th 10:4	90 20:1 23:13,16
20% 18:10	48 9:21 19:25	900 21:1
2019 3:2 4:10,17,21,25 10:2, 15,17 13:9 27:2,5	499 12:7	98 18:10,12
2019-D 10:17 13:7 20:16	5	_ A
22nd 10:2	5 10:24	A O 0.7 40.0 40.00 44.40
22rd 27·10	5 363 43.9	A.C. 6:7 12:2 13:22 14:12

15:6,18 16:6,15 17:4

5,362 12:8

23rd 27:19

a.m. 10:18 13:10 Academy 10:16 14:6 accident 12:20,25 accountant 5:17

accuracy 31:20

achievement 27:22

act 6:21 7:16 28:17 29:7

action 9:20 activists 32:19

ad 23:24

add 14:16 17:12

added 9:19 18:6,7

addition 5:13 24:12

additional 8:6 18:11 23:6

Additionally 6:10 10:22

address 6:19

addresses 14:13

adjourn 37:3,7

adjourned 37:10

administrative 36:7

adopt 4:25

advance 27:21

adversarial 26:13

advise 30:5,7

afternoon 3:4,7,25 5:23 6:6,7, 8 18:4 27:15 32:5 37:11

agencies 8:24

agenda 4:9,12,16 7:4 9:20 24:4 36:8

Aggravated 12:7

ahead 29:21 36:16

Akbar 5:25

Alexander 33:7

alignment 23:3

alleging 19:5

allotted 11:17

allowed 36:1

allowing 9:21 26:7 34:25

altercation 33:8,11

amount 32:18

animal 16:22

Annie 3:22

announcement 13:6,8

Announcements 13:5 27:1

answers 36:14

anxious 31:1

appeal 14:17,21 24:14

apprised 24:16

approach 13:20

approaching 15:21

approval 4:9,10

approve 4:11,16

April 31:22

area 16:8

arrangements 17:23

arrest 15:22

arrested 33:4

arrests 32:18

arrives 9:17

Article 8:14

assaulted 15:21

assaults 12:6.7

Assistant 6:5,8 8:5 12:1 13:13,14 14:25 18:1 23:20

33:20

Association 9:25 10:14

Assuming 14:4

At-large 3:22 4:1,3

attempt 16:22

attempting 16:22

attend 10:19 20:18

attendance 3:8 18:1

attended 27:18 32:21

attending 5:24 7:10 32:19

35:14,15

attention 6:17 24:2

attorney 5:12

audience 6:14 11:10 27:8

audiovisual 5:10

auditing 8:22

August 10:15,17 13:8,9 20:23

23:11 27:2,5

Aye 4:18 5:2 37:8

В

back 7:15 11:12 13:18 14:4,6, 7,11 15:5,9 17:1 20:2 24:10 25:18 26:3 31:18 32:23 36:13,

18

background 14:1,4

bad 20:3 33:11

balance 5:22

bank 23:1

barred 36:1

Barren 10:24

Barren's 13:6

base 23:1

based 9:2

basically 25:7 34:19

beautiful 22:13

bed 25:11

beginning 10:24

behalf 3:7 7:24

Bell 4:2 14:16,20 19:6 37:4

bit 13:3

Blossom 5:18



blue 16:25

board 3:6,8 5:11,16,23 6:8,20, 23 7:9,13,24 8:3,8,14 9:7,9, 14,24 10:9,12,19,22,25 14:18 20:15 23:3,25 24:3,6,15,16,21 25:5 26:3 28:3

BOPC 5:5,14 8:21 10:13

Borden 13:1 **Brenda** 27:13

broke 18:8

Brooks 3:25 4:1

brought 35:17

Brown 4:4 5:13 7:6 10:11 11:13 16:4,5,6,24 17:9 22:17, 18,19 23:21 27:11 29:1 30:15 32:1 35:4 36:25

building 7:13,14 32:20 33:7

buildings 7:17 32:21

Burch 3:11

burglaries 12:13

Burns 35:6,8,10

Burton 3:12 35:17 36:1

Bush 12:22

business 4:8 26:25 27:1 34:6 37:3

01.0

Butler 27:13,15

Butzel 27:19

C

cable 3:9

California 27:20

call 6:17 15:17 21:11,13 24:2

Callaway 6:3

calling 18:18

camera 22:22

capabilities 23:14

capacity 25:20

capture 19:25 20:4

card 7:6 11:14,16 14:19

cards 11:12 27:12

care 12:18

carjackings 12:12

Carolyn 27:6

carries 4:20 5:4 37:9

cars 16:25

Carter 3:4,5,18 4:7,15,19,24 5:3 6:4,12 13:13 16:2,5 17:11, 24 21:4 22:5,15,18 23:22 25:1 26:11,23 28:25 29:21 31:25 32:4 35:24 36:4,12,16,21 37:2,6,9

case 15:13

cases 8:22 18:14

catered 31:2

CCRS 18:8 19:17

celebrate 27:21

celebrating 10:4 13:9

celebration 10:23,24 13:7 27:19

cell 11:19 31:14,20

center 17:15 24:8 27:7,19 30:22 31:3,24 32:23

centers 7:20

chair 3:6 4:6 5:6 12:2 16:4 17:10,18 22:17 24:1,25 25:17 26:22 27:11 29:20 30:10,17 35:3,5 36:6,10,25

Chairperson 3:4,18,21 4:7,15, 19,24 5:3 6:4,12 13:13 14:24 16:1,2,5 17:11,24 21:4 22:5, 15,18 23:22 25:1 26:11,23 28:25 29:21 31:25 32:4 35:24 36:4,12,16,21 37:2,6,9

Chairperson's 6:16 7:22

change 6:17,18

channel 3:10

Chaplain 3:13,14

Chapter 8:14

character 28:12

charges 29:9,10

Charles 16:19

Charter 8:14

checks 7:20

Cheeks 27:6

chief 5:20 6:5,8,9 8:5 9:12 10:9,23 11:5,15 12:1 13:6,14, 23 14:7,13,17,21,25 15:8 16:16,18 18:1 23:19 27:18,24 28:3 30:12 33:20

chief's 7:7 9:16 11:7,16

Chiefs 17:19 23:20

children 33:1

Christmas 8:9

Christopher 12:19,22

Church 10:18

churches 7:19

citizen 8:1,19,23 20:24 23:9 28:16

citizen's 19:5

citizens 8:17,20 9:10 19:1 32:5,11,24 33:14,18,19 34:16, 19

city 8:14 21:10,20 28:5,19 30:22 32:7,12,20,21

civic 6:13

civic-minded 10:6

civil 8:20

civilian 8:15,18 9:8 10:1,4

clarification 7:8

class 10:17 20:16,22

close 19:23

closed 18:8,12 19:17 35:22 36:3

closing 21:17

clothing 16:21

code 29:7,15

Coleman 33:7

comfortable 18:18

command 16:16 18:25 19:1

Commander 27:25 28:4

comment 6:24 21:9 22:8 31:24 35:18.19

comments 6:20 7:2,5 11:10 22:15 24:20 27:10

Commission 36:1

Commissioner 3:5,18,20,21, 23,25 4:2,3,4,13,14,22,23 13:15 14:9,16,19,20,24 15:10, 25 16:4,5,6,24 17:9 19:6,10, 15 21:5,7,9,13,14,22 22:3,7, 11,17,18,19 23:21,23 24:24 25:2 26:1,12,17,21 29:20,21, 22 30:2,5,9,12,16 33:13,24 34:2 35:4,6,9,11,17 37:4,5

commissioners 3:11 4:9,18, 20 5:2 7:9 8:8,15 9:7,15 14:18 16:3 17:12,13,22,25 22:6 23:23 27:1,15,24 28:12,19 32:6 37:8

committed 28:17

committee 23:24

communication 26:24 27:8

communications 24:18

communities 28:15,22

community 7:18,20 8:12,19 9:4 27:4,18 30:19 32:16,19

compared 12:13

complaint 19:1 20:25 23:11 30:1 33:17

complaints 8:23 9:10 18:11, 19,20,24 19:5,25 20:6 30:3

33:15

concern 8:1 22:22 31:8

concerned 16:6,9 25:3 32:9,

17

concerns 7:25 28:24

conclude 13:11

concluded 37:12

condition 7:11

conducting 3:7

conducts 14:1

conference 10:2,7

confused 30:24

confusing 33:6

conjunction 31:10,15

connect 25:14

connected 25:7

Connor 27:7

consideration 4:8 7:1 9:14

consistent 6:21

constantly 13:20 15:20

continue 7:22

continuing 9:25

contract 31:12

control 8:16

conversant 25:24

conversation 23:19

coordinate 20:18,21

copy 26:24

copycats 15:15

Coulter 6:2

council 30:22 32:12,20,21

Councilwoman 32:13

count 27:12

counted 32:22

couple 14:25 20:17

court 5:10

Craig 6:10 27:18 28:3

crashes 17:7

create 6:19 23:4

credit 18:17

crime 11:8 12:3,13 17:14,15

29:5 30:22 31:3,24

critical 9:4 11:8

D

D.C. 16:18

Darius 12:24

Darryl 4:4

data 17:1,7 20:2 22:25

date 12:5 13:11 14:5

David 6:6,8

Davis 3:13,14,23 4:23 13:15 14:9,19 21:6,7,9,13,14,22

22:3

day 13:9 20:1 23:16

day-to-day 31:5

days 17:20 23:13

debate 30:23

decide 23:11

decision 15:8

decrease 19:9 20:8

dedicated 28:7

demeanor 19:18,20

denies 14:17

department 8:4,16 9:9,11 11:9 13:24 14:3,8 21:20 23:17 24:14 25:8,14,20,21,23,24 26:3,5,20 27:18 30:25

deploy 17:6

deployed 16:10

Deputy 10:23 13:6 16:16,18
detectives 20:13
determine 31:4
Detroit 3:1 6:11 7:9 8:13 9:6,8
10:3,13 27:3,17 30:19,25 32:7

Detroit's 28:6
develop 22:25
developing 9:2
devices 11:20,21
Dewaelsche 3:11
differences 28:23
difficult 26:13
dig 21:21

directive 9:16,18,23 31:22 directly 18:24 20:25 director 13:17 disappointing 32:15 disappointment 30:21

discard 23:5 disciplinary 15:7 discourse 28:20 discriminatory 8:24 discuss 36:7

discussion 4:17 5:1 24:10 **distance** 16:20

District 3:5,23 4:2,4

ditto 32:8 dog 16:8,23

doors 35:22 36:3

download 23:15

DPD 11:21,22 20:5

DPD's 23:4 **drones** 31:21 **duty** 28:11

Ε

Ebenezer 10:18 effect 25:21 effective 9:3 elaborate 16:11

elected 6:13

electronic 11:20 19:24

eliminate 8:24 Elizabeth 4:1

Elvin 10:24

email 20:16,20 24:18 26:24

emergency 11:22 empowered 8:15 encounter 23:9

encourage 10:19 21:11

end 6:20 7:2,5,6 11:9,15,16 34:10

enforcement 8:18 10:1,5 31:6, 14

engage 25:21 enhanced 7:14 enlightening 17:16

entertain 37:3

entire 15:19 **Eva** 3:11

evening 13:7 32:22

event 11:1 events 24:6

everyone's 31:2

evidence 19:24

evil 35:16

ex-officers 13:20

excelled 19:22

excellent 22:21

exceptional 20:8

excuse 18:6

Excused 3:12

executive 17:15

exempt 29:15

exercise 14:22

exists 9:7

expand 25:18 30:22

expanding 25:19

experience 31:5

express 7:24

extending 23:17

extra 18:12

extremely 18:16

F

facial 9:16 30:20 31:11 32:10

facilities 7:15

facility 7:21 12:19

facing 11:9

fact 30:21

failed 16:10

fallen 7:25 8:7

false 29:5,6,8,11,13

families 10:20

fatalities 17:2

favor 4:17 5:1 37:7

Faye 5:16

federal 7:16

feel 32:2

feeling 18:18 31:1

fellow 29:14

fewer 12:11,13 17:7

field 13:9 31:2



file 20:24 21:2 29:9,10

filed 18:8 20:1 29:6

filing 18:19

final 14:20

finalization 15:4

finally 31:9

find 19:16 29:16,18

fine 26:1

finest 28:6

fired 28:10

Fitzgerald 16:16,18,19

focus 28:20

folks 30:23

follow-up 25:9

footage 22:22

force 8:25 10:21 33:10

forefront 8:21

form 4:25

formal 28:1

forward 16:13 31:22

found 29:4

Fredia 27:12

Freedom 24:4,5

Friday 10:17 13:8

front 11:14 26:19

full 10:12 24:15,16

future 17:8

G

gave 14:19

give 6:14 27:9 34:9

Glenn 32:3,5,6 33:13,23 34:1

God's 19:13

good 3:4,25 5:23 6:6,7 18:4

27:15 28:22 32:5

Gordon 27:13 29:1,2 30:11

government 3:9 7:17

graduating 20:23

graduation 10:16 13:7

grandstanding 26:15

Green 31:11

groups 24:9

Gucci 19:13

gun 33:10

gunshot 12:18,21

guys 15:14 20:20 33:12 35:21

Н

handle 29:24

happened 14:2 25:10 31:21

head 12:18

Headquarters 7:12 8:10 27:3

health 24:9

hear 31:13

heard 31:16,17

hearing 6:15 10:14 15:7 18:5

heated 30:23

heels 21:24

height 21:23

held 7:19 11:21 15:7 23:7

29:14 36:2

helping 17:2

helps 8:18

hey 19:13

Hicks 4:6,7 5:4,6,20 17:17,18 20:16 23:25 24:1 25:17 26:17,

23

hiding 32:23

high 18:17

higher 12:6

highest 19:4,19 20:9

Hill 27:14 32:1,2

hire 14:5

hoc 23:24

hold 11:17

holding 19:2

Holiday 8:9

Holley 3:15,19 4:3,22 14:24

15:10,25 18:3 19:10,15 22:7, 11 24:24 25:2 26:1,12,21

29:20,22 30:2,5,9,12,16

33:13,24 34:2 35:6,9,11

Holt 3:20,21,22

home 12:20,21,23,25 13:3

homicide 33:17

Homicides 12:4

honored 28:8

honoring 27:16

hope 28:16

hoped 27:24

hoping 19:3

hospitalized 13:3

host 7:21 10:1

hours 9:22

Human 5:18

husband 33:9

ı

identification 7:10,13

identifies 31:12

identify 7:11

immediately 5:11

implemented 7:16 25:16 26:8

important 6:23 8:2 9:22

incident 16:14 include 11:21 included 24:18 including 24:12 incoming 24:3,22

increase 12:7,8,10 18:10,13, 15,17 20:7

increasing 9:5

individual 8:22 24:19 individuals 10:6 17:20

information 8:6 9:14 10:11 11:2 24:5,6

initiates 14:14

injured 7:25 8:4,7 12:16 33:4

intent 9:19,22 interested 19:11

interrogated 31:16

interrupt 11:24

intervening 17:21

interviewed 28:9

introduce 5:5,15,22 6:5

introducing 6:22

introductions 3:20 5:7

investigate 9:10

investigating 8:22

investigation 14:1,5

investigator 5:21,25 6:1,2,3

11:5

investigators 22:2

invite 10:8

invited 3:13

inviting 10:5

invocation 3:14,16,17

involved 12:24

isolated 16:14

issue 22:22 23:2,9

issues 11:8 18:21 36:7

items 4:8 9:13,20 24:2,3,22

J

Jermaine 5:12

Jim 4:3

Joanna 33:5

Joanne 33:5

job 33:12

Johnson 5:16 12:17

join 10:6

joining 3:8 10:20

Jones 15:1

July 3:2 4:10,16,21,25 20:19

24:5,6,21

June 18:5,6,9 19:8,10 20:6,16

justified 8:17

Κ

Karen 27:13 29:2

Kilpatrick 27:6

kind 19:2 21:21 33:18

L

lack 30:24 31:10

Larceny 12:14

law 8:18 10:1,5 29:16,18,19

31:5,14

leaders 6:13

leadership 14:22

learn 28:24

learned 28:9

learning 19:21

leave 14:10 26:9

left 14:10 32:23

legal 15:24 30:7

letter 13:23,25 14:12,14,18

letting 35:2

Levalley 6:6,7,8 12:1,2 13:14, 22 14:12 15:6,18 16:15 17:4 18:1

lied 29:14

lieutenants 20:6

life 9:5

lifelong 32:7

light 15:10 31:11

lights 17:6

limit 27:9

Lisa 3:5

list 18:25

listed 24:3,4

listening 28:24

listing 8:4

local 7:17

located 11:12 27:3,7

location 11:1

long 34:6 35:15

long-term 12:18

losing 18:7

lost 20:2

lot 13:19 16:19 22:23 30:23

35:10

M

Madam 4:6 5:6 12:2 14:24 15:25 16:4 17:10,18 22:17 23:23 24:1,25 25:17 26:22 27:11 29:20 30:17 35:3,4 36:25

made 13:5 24:14,15,20 27:20 29:8,11,13



Madge 27:14 35:13 main 34:4

majority 20:4

make 7:8 9:12 11:11 14:1 15:13,22 17:23 23:11 25:5,6, 8,12 26:4,6,14,15,24 33:15

making 5:7 11:6 21:17 25:13

man 19:13

manager 17:15

manner 28:4

Marvin 12:20

matter 9:17 10:15 14:23

mayor 9:11

mayor's 30:25

Mccalister 5:21,23,24 11:5 18:3,4 19:16 21:5,8,12,19,24 22:10,14,19 23:8 29:23,25 30:4,8,13

means 14:21

Media 5:9

meet 8:8,10,12 28:22

meeting 3:7,9,10,13 5:8,24 6:20 7:3,5 11:10,24 24:7,21 27:2,4 32:22 34:11,14 35:21 36:5,9 37:10

meetings 6:21 7:10,12,18 32:19 35:16,22,24,25 36:2,20, 22,24

member 3:22 10:25

members 20:5,11,12,14 32:12 36:5

memory 22:23 28:2

mental 24:9

Merrill 21:1

Michael 12:22 13:1

Michigan 3:1

mind 35:10

Mindy 5:10

minute 34:8

minutes 4:10,21,25 11:18 27:10 32:3 34:8,10

misconduct 8:24

mistakes 34:17

mobile 31:10,13,14,20

modified 9:15

modify 9:12

monitor 9:10

month 8:11,13 19:19 20:10

monthly 11:4 18:3

months 14:11 23:10 25:10

27:21

Morales 12:23

Morgan 27:14 35:4,13,14,25

36:11,15,17,23

Moses 6:1

motion 4:11,19 5:3 37:3

Motions 37:9

motor 12:14,25

motorcycle 12:20

moved 4:13,15,22,24 37:4,6

Moving 12:16

Mutual 9:3

N

NACO 9:25

Naine 10:10

National 9:25 10:2

Neely 6:2

neighborhood 6:9 13:2 28:1,

13

news 35:20

nicely 22:8,9

Nichols 6:1

night 12:4

noncriminal 9:10

Nonfatal 12:9

nongovernmental 7:19

normal 7:2,22

notes 36:19

notice 9:22 16:25

noticed 13:16

notified 10:13

notify 9:18

NPOS 28:4

number 21:2 24:13

numbers 17:5

0

oath 28:18

object 15:24

obtained 11:13

OCI 5:14,22 18:3 22:25 23:6

offensive 19:11

office 6:9 11:4 17:19 18:19 20:25 25:13,14 29:23 30:25

officer 8:1 10:10 12:17,19,20, 22,24 13:1,2,17 14:10 15:1 17:2 23:10 28:12 29:13,14 32:24

officers 8:1,4,7 10:14,20 12:16 13:19,22 15:12,13,19, 21 19:20 20:7,10 27:20 28:1, 7,13,14,18 32:22 33:9,16,18, 21 34:3,15

officials 6:13 28:18

OIC 34:15

on-duty 12:25

online 21:2

open 6:21 18:9,14 opened 20:22 operate 7:14 16:10 operation 8:23 operations 9:11 opportunity 6:19 14:17 17:13 28:6 34:9

opposed 4:19 5:3

oral 27:8

organization 10:5

organizations 8:21 10:6

overhead 16:25

overkill 32:25 33:9 34:17

oversight 8:15,18,20 9:8 10:1, 4 28:21

owner 16:23

Р

p.m. 3:3 8:12,13 10:18,25 13:11 27:2,5 37:12

package 11:1 packet 24:19 panel 24:9

participate 7:11

participated 24:9

participation 10:8

partners 15:20

parts 7:3

pass 14:4

passionately 28:12

past 23:13 36:6

Patriot 7:16

patterns 8:23

pay 10:10

Penal 29:7

penalty 29:15

pending 18:9

Penelope 35:13

people 7:10 18:18 21:10 25:14

29:10 33:1

perfect 34:18

period 6:25 8:10 17:22 24:12

person 16:21 18:23 29:8 33:3

personal 21:23

personnel 11:21,22 13:16

Petty 27:13 30:15,18 32:8

phones 11:20,23 31:14,21

pictures 27:24 28:3

piece 25:4

place 32:18

Plaisance 21:1

planning 10:7

plans 27:21

point 9:13 17:8 25:15 26:6,14

31:7

police 3:5 6:11 7:9 8:8,14,16, 24,25 9:1,4,7,9,12,14 10:10, 13,16,21,23 11:9,15 13:1,2,23 14:6,13,18 20:7 23:10 25:8,14 26:3,5 27:17 28:1,13 29:5,6,8, 11,13,14,17 30:25 32:6,22,24 33:8,15,18,21 34:3,15

policies 23:4

policing 6:9 9:3

policy 6:23,25 9:12 23:2

polite 19:21

poll 17:20

Polly 5:21 11:5

positions 28:5

post 9:17

potential 31:11

practice 6:21,22 31:5

practices 8:25

precinct 16:8 18:20,23 19:2

27:6,25 28:14 29:4

precincts 17:4,6 18:19

prepared 15:15

present 5:22

presentation 11:3,4,6 17:14

22:21 24:15 26:2

presentations 18:2

presented 32:11

president 34:7

pretty 31:7

print 11:11

prior 5:7

priorities 8:3

problem 21:16

procedure 6:18 13:19,21

19:18,19

procedures 19:22

proceeding 37:12

process 10:7 14:14 21:3,16

processed 18:10,13,15

profanity 19:6

Project 30:19 31:11

Property 12:13

proposed 9:16,18,20 31:22

protect 8:19

protection 8:2

prove 29:11

provide 3:14 7:6 8:6,15 9:8

17:8

providing 5:9

provision 7:15

psychiatric 24:13 25:4,11



public 6:19,20,24 7:2,4,12,15 8:10 9:19 11:10 27:3 28:24 36:1

pull 20:2 23:12,14,15

put 22:20 31:18,22

Q

quality 9:5

question 13:15 16:24 22:8 24:24 35:18,19,20 36:3,15

questions 13:14 16:2 17:12 21:3,5,7 22:5,16 23:22 24:23 36:13

quickly 21:18

Quinn 5:9

quorum 4:6

R

rank 20:5

ranked 8:2

ratio 32:24

reading 35:20

ready 14:11

real 31:5 32:15

 $\textbf{Realtime} \ \ 17{:}14{,}15\ 30{:}22\ 31{:}3,$

24

reappointed 13:24

reason 25:18

reasons 25:3

receive 9:9 14:5,14

received 9:15 10:9

receives 8:3

recognition 9:16 27:23 30:20

31:12 32:10

recognizing 27:16

recommendation 6:24

record 6:15 26:14 27:9 31:18 36:21

recorded 28:2

recordings 36:23

recovering 12:17,19,21,23,25

13:2

Recreation 27:19

recruiting 13:25

reducing 17:2

refer 11:2

reference 14:23

refresher 14:7

rehired 14:15

related 8:7

Relations 5:19

relationship 25:20

relative 24:11,20

released 9:21 13:4 15:8

remain 7:3

remarks 8:6

remind 9:24 10:22 15:18

reminder 10:25 20:15

report 6:16,17 7:7,23 8:4 11:4, 7,15,17,25 13:12 14:5 16:16 18:3,5 22:13,20 23:25 24:23 25:23 26:18 29:5,6,8,13

reporter 5:10

reports 23:24 29:11 35:20

represent 3:5

representatives 6:14

representing 30:19

request 10:9,13 11:20 24:5,6,

7

requesting 11:7 13:24

require 7:9,13

required 7:21

resident 32:7

residents 9:5

respect 9:3 33:25 34:18

respectful 34:14

responded 17:21,22

responding 33:24

responsibility 28:21

rest 33:14

restricted 6:25

retired 22:1 27:20

retirement 10:23 13:6

return 28:5

Reverend 3:15

review 9:18

reviewing 8:22 10:12

Reyes 12:22

rid 23:2

rights 8:20

ringing 11:23

Robberies 12:10

Robert 5:13

Robinson 24:20

Rodriguez 12:21

roll 15:17

room 27:6

S

safety 7:12 8:1,10 27:3 28:22

Samaritan 27:7

save 23:15

scheduled 11:3 17:17

schedules 20:21

scrutinize 31:23

searched 19:19

seated 11:14 **secret** 35:22 36:2,9

secretary 23:25 25:2

security 7:14,20

seldom 22:12

Senior 5:25

seniority 20:5

separated 13:23 14:3

separates 13:17

September 10:2

Sergeant 5:9 27:16 28:2,9

serve 3:6 28:7,18

server 23:12

service 27:17 28:10

Services 5:9

set 16:20

setting 28:1

settings 7:19

Sexual 12:6

shared 10:11

sheet 11:2

Sheffield 32:12,13

Shirley 3:11

shooting 16:7

shootings 12:9

short 21:15,19,20,22,25

show 7:10 10:19

shown 31:7

side 33:21

simply 34:16

sir 6:6

Sitting 6:9

situation 15:23 16:7,11,12

33:2,6

slowing 21:16

slurs 19:11

source 23:6

speak 7:4 28:16,17 29:25

34:9,10,11

speaker 11:17 35:5 37:1

speaker's 11:11

speaking 20:15 35:7

speaks 28:11

special 6:24

specific 17:5

specifically 24:4 25:19

specifics 16:15,17

spider 13:3

spot 19:3

staff 5:5,14 6:11 21:15,23

36:5,10

stand 5:14 6:14

standard 7:3

standby 11:22

standing 23:24

start 3:19 6:16 12:3 17:9

started 18:21 19:7

state 7:16 13:10

statistics 11:8

stats 12:3 31:19

status 15:1,3

step 14:21

Stoppers 17:14

stops 17:2

stops 17.2

storage 22:25

store 23:1

Street 27:4,7

struck 12:23

studied 17:7

success 16:19

successful 17:1

suggesting 10:14

Supervising 5:25

supervisor 22:1

supervisory 8:16

support 4:14,23 7:25 10:19

14:23 28:13 37:5

supported 4:16,24 37:6

supporting 9:3

surgery 13:1

surroundings 15:19

suspend 10:10

suspension 10:11

swears 14:7

sworn 20:12,14

T

table 11:13

takes 22:23

taking 18:20

talk 30:8,13,20

talking 21:10 34:12,13

taped 5:8

tase 16:22,23

tasers 16:10,13,20

Tawana 27:13 30:18

teaching 33:2

Team 24:7,8 25:4

technologists 31:6,23

technology 30:19,21 31:12,15

32:10,14

telephone 21:1

ten 20:11

terms 15:4,16,23



Terry 24:20

Thanksgiving 8:9

thefts 12:15

Theresa 5:18

thing 18:17 19:12 34:4,5

things 14:25 15:11 17:3 24:13 25:7,22

thought 15:3

throw 15:24

thrown 15:12

Thursday 8:11,13 27:2,5

Thursen 12:19

Tia 3:13,14

time 3:19 4:11,20 5:4 6:5 10:3 11:1,25 14:2,3 15:1 17:22 18:2 22:20 23:24 24:12 27:8 34:6 35:14,15

timely 28:4

today 3:13 4:16 5:8,11,24,25 6:10,22 10:24 11:3 12:3 17:13,21 18:1,5,7 21:25 29:3 30:10 35:17

today's 3:12

Tolbert 12:24

tomorrow 20:19,20

tonight 35:7

tracking 19:7

traffic 17:2

transcriptionist 36:18,19

transparency 30:24 31:10,19

32:9

trips 31:3

true 35:21,22

trust 9:3

Tuesday 9:21

turn 11:19

two-week 14:6

type 15:23,24

types 25:22

typical 18:25

Typically 6:18

U

understand 25:25 26:9

underway 10:7

union 14:22

unit 13:25 24:13

University 13:10

unjust 28:17

unknowns 19:4

unlimited 31:13

unnecessary 8:25

unpleasant 28:19

upcoming 31:1

update 11:8 15:2 24:10 25:19

updates 7:22

٧

vain 19:14

Valerie 32:3,6

Vanessa 27:16

vehicle 12:14,25

vehicles 12:24

version 9:15

vibrate 11:23

vice 36:6

video 23:11

videos 23:1,5

viewing 3:9,10 18:5

vigilant 15:19

VIPS 6:13

visit 17:14

visited 35:16

visitors 9:6

voice 18:7 31:8

volumes 28:11

vote 6:25 9:19 31:2

voted 30:22

voting 6:23

W

walks 18:23

Wallace 12:17

wanted 24:10,16 25:18,21

34:5,21 36:24

ward 25:4,11

Warfield 33:4,5

Warwick 33:5,6

watching 15:20

water 15:12,23

Wayne 13:10

weapon 28:11

wearing 16:21

website 9:17

Wednesday 35:21,24,25 36:2,

5,20

week 8:9 9:21 10:15 17:17,23

24:22

weekly 8:3

weeks 8:11 15:2 20:17

Wellness 24:7,8 25:4

William 3:23

Willie 3:12 4:2

Womack 5:10

wondering 29:3



word 19:9 26:2

words 25:8

work 5:10 9:2,8,11,25 19:3 24:11,17 26:4,5,19 28:14,23 34:22

worked 18:22

working 18:14 25:24 26:8

works 26:16worthy 28:7

wound 12:18,21

write 13:23 14:18 29:5

writes 14:12 written 32:11

Wyatt 27:17 28:2,9 **Wyrick** 5:12 10:12

Υ

year 10:4 12:4,5,6,8,9,11,12, 14 13:18 18:11,12 19:7 23:1,7

year-to-date 18:6,7,16

years 20:11,12,14 27:17 28:10 32:15 33:10

York 15:11

Young 33:7